United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

FIFTEENTH SESSION
Official Records

FIRST COMMITTEE, 11615t

MEETING
(CLOSING MEETING)

Friday, 21 April 1961,
at 3 p.m,

New York

CONTENTS
Page
Agenda item 90:
Complaint by the Revolutionary Government of Cuba
regarding the various plans of aggression and acts
of intervention being executed by the Government of
the United States of America against the Republic
of Cuba, constituting a manifest violation of its ter-
ritorial integrity, sovereignty and independence, and
a clear threat to international peace and security
(concluded)

Organization of the Committee’s work......ccvvnunu.n. 110
Completion of the Committee’s work.....ooevvervnann.. 112

.....................................

Chairman: Mr. Karel KURKA (Czechoslovakia).

In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Santiso Gdlves
(Guatemala), Rapporteur, took the Chair.

AGENDA ITEM 90

Complaint by the Revolutionary Government of
Cuba regarding the various plans of aggression
and acts of intervention being executed by the
Government of the United States of America
against the Republic of Cuba, constituting a
manifest violation of its territorial integrity,
sovereignty and independence, and a clear
threat to international peace and security (A/
4537, A/4543, A/4581, A/4701, A/4708, A/
4710, A/4716, A/4725, A/C.1/839, A/C.1/840,
A/C.1/841, A/C.1/L.274, A/C.1/L.275, A/C.1/
L.276, A/C.1/L.277,A/C.1/L.278) (concluded)

1. Mr. AGUIRRE (Uruguay), in reply to a question
raised at the previous meeting by the representative
of Romania concerning the seven-Power draft resolu-
tion (A/C.1/L.276), read the following passages from
the Final Act of the Seventh Meeting of Consultation
of Ministers of Foreign Affairs of the American States,
the text of which had been transmitted to the Security
Council (S/4480) : resolution II, relating to the crea-
tion of an Ad Hoc Good Offices Committee; the list
of the Ministers who had signed the Final Act; the
statements of Mexico and Guatemala.

2. Mr. SOSA RODRIGUEZ (Venezuela), on behalf
of the sponsors of the seven-Power draft resolution,
accepted the oral amendment proposed at the preceding
meeting by the representative of Saudi Arabia, for the
insertion of the word “peaceful” before the word
“action”, in the amended operative paragraph 2.

3. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) explained that his
delegation would vote for the second Sudanese amend-
ment (A/C.1/1.278, para. 2) to the seven-Power draft
resolution, but that did not in any way mean that it did
not respect the Organization of American States
(OAS). Its reasons for supporting the amendment
were as follows: firstly, the member of the OAS in
question could have brought its case before that or-

ganization, but had preferred to bring it before the
United Nations; secondly, the OAS could take any
measures without being called upon to do so by the
United Nations; thirdly, the sponsors did not mention
anywhere in their text that the OAS would report
back to the United Nations on the implementation of
the provisions of the draft resolution; fourthly, it was
essential that any appeal made by a small country to
the United Nations, particularly if it was a complaint
against a great Power, should be heard instead of being
referred to another organization, especially if the appeal-
ing country was opposed to such a measure. Further-
more, the appealing country might not belong to any
regional organization.

4. He also requested that the seven-Power draft
resolution should be put to the vote paragraph by para-
graph.

5. Mr. QUAISON-SACKEY (Ghana) proposed, in
agreement with the Sudanese delegation, that operative
paragraph 1 of the seven-Power draft resolution (A/
C.1/L.276) should be worded as follows: “Exhorts
Member States, especially those from Latin America,
to lend their assistance with a view to achieving a settle-
ment by peaceful means in accordance with the Pur-
poses and Principles of the Charter of the United
Nations”.

6. Mr. ELMI (Somalia) supported the first and third
Sudanese amendments, which had been accepted by the
sponsors. Reiterating that not all States necessarily
belonged to regional organizations which could safe-
guard their interests, he said that his delegation would
abstain in the vote on the second Sudanese amendment.
Furthermore, if the OAS took a decision, it should not
be considered as an official decision taken by the United
Nations.

7. Mr. AMADEO (Argentina) pointed out that, since
the sponsors of the draft resolution had accepted the
Sudanese amendment to operative paragraph 2, the
proposal made by Ghana would amount to a repetition.
He therefore did not think that the sponsors could
accept that proposal.

8. Mr. QUAISON-SACKEY (Ghana) said that he
would not press for a vote on his proposal.

9. Mr. ROSSIDES (Cyprus) reworded his amend-
ment to operative paragraph 1 of the seven-Power draft
resolution to read : “and to report to the United Nations,
as soon as possible, within the present year, the mea-
sures they have taken to achieve settlement by peaceful
means”,

10. Mr. SOSA RODRIGUEZ (Venezuela) said that
the sponsors of the draft resolution accepted that amend-
ment.

11. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the second
amendment submitted by the Sudan (A/C.1/L.278,
para. 2).

107 A/C.1/SR.1161



108

General Assembly—Fifteenth Session—First Committee

4 vote was taken by roll-call.

Turkey, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman,
was called upon to vote first,

In favour: Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic,
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Arab Re-
public, Upper Volta, Yemen, Yugoslavia, Afghanistan,
Albania, Bulgaria, Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist
Republic, Cambodia, Ceylon, Cuba, Czechoslovakia,
Ghana, Guinea, Hungary, India, Indonesia, Iraq,
Lebanon, Libya, Mali, Mexico, Morocco, Nepal, Po-
land, Romania, Saudi Arabia, Sudan.

Against: Turkey, Union of South Africa, United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland,
United States of America, Uruguay, Venezuela, Ar-
gentina, Australia, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil, Canada,
Chile, China, Colombia, Congo (Leopoldville), Costa
Rica, Denmark, El Salvador, Federation of Malaya,
France, Greece, Guatemala, Honduras, Iceland, Iran,
Ireland, Israel, Italy, Japan, Luxembourg, Netherlands,
New Zealand, Nicaragua, Norway, Pakistan, Panama,
Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Portugal, Spain, Thai-
land,

Abstaining : Austria, Cameroun, Central African Re-
public, Chad, Congo (Brazzaville), Cyprus, Dahomey,
Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Ethiopia, Finland,
Gabon, Ivory Coast, Laos, Liberia, Madagascar, Niger,
Nigeria, Senegal, Somalia, Sweden, Togo, Tunisia.

The amendment was rejected by 43 votes to 31, with
23 abstentions.

12. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the draft resolu-
tion submitted by Argentina, Chile, Colombia, Hon-
duras, Panama, Uruguay and Venezuela (A/C.1/
1..276), incorporating the amendments accepted by the
sponsors to the second preambular paragraph a_nd to
operative paragraphs 1 and 2. The representative of
Afghanistan had requested a vote paragraph by para-
graph.

The first preambular paragraph was adopted without
objection.

The second preambular paragraph was adopted with-
out objection.

A vote was taken by roll-call on the third preambular
paragraph.

Canada, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman,
was called upon to vote first.

In favour: Canada, Central African Republic, Chad,
Chile, China, Colombia, Congo (Brazzaville), Congo
(Leopoldville), Costa Rica, Cyprus, Dahomey, Den-
mark, El Salvador, Federation of Malaya, France,
Gabon, Greece, Guatemala, Honduras, Iceland, Iran,
Ireland, Israel, Italy, Ivory Coast, Japan, Laos, Liberia,
Luxembourg, Madagascar, Netherlands, New Zealand,
Nicaragua, Niger, Norway, Pakistan, Panama, Para-
guay, Peru, Philippines, Portugal, Senegal, Spain, Thai-
land, Tunisia, Turkey, Union of South Africa, United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland,
United States of America, Uruguay, Venezuela, Ar-
gentina, Australia, Belgium, Cameroun.

Against: Cuba, Czechoslovakia, Guinea, Hungary,
Mexico, Poland, Romania, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist
Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, Yugo-
slavia, Albania, Brazil, Bulgaria, Byelorussian Soviet
Socialist Republic.

Abstaining : Ceylon, Dominican Republic, Ecuador,
Ethiopia, Finland, Ghana, India, Indonesia, Iraq,
Jordan, Lebanon, Libya, Mali, Morocco, Nepal, Nigeria,

Saudi Arabia, Somalia, Sudan, Sweden, Togo, United

Arab Republic, Upper Volta, Yemen, Afghanistan,
Austria, Bolivia, Burma, Cambodia.

The paragraph was adopted by 55 votes to 14, with
29 abstentions.

The fourth preambular paragraph was adopted with-
out objection.

A wvote was taken by roll-call on operative para-
graph 1.

Indonesia, having been drawn by lot by the Chair-
man, was called upon to vote first.

In favour: Iran, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Ivory Coast,
Japan, Laos, Liberia, Luxembourg, Madagascar,
Netherlands, New Zealand, Nicaragua, Niger, Norway,
Pakistan, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Portu-
gal, Senegal, Spain, Thailand, Togo, Tunisia, Turkey,
Union of South Africa, United Kingdom of Great
Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of Amer-
ica, Uruguay, Venezuela, Argentina, Australia, Austrra,
Belgium, Brazil, Cameroun, Canada, Chad, Chile, China,
Colombia, Congo (Leopoldville), Costa Rica, Cyprus,
Dahomey, Denmark, El Salvador, Federation of Malaya,
France, Gabon, Greece, Guatemala, Honduras, Iceland.

Against : Indonesia, Iraq, Lebanon, Libya, Mexico,
Morocco, Nepal, Poland, Romania, Saudi Arabxa,
Sudan, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union 'of
Soviet Socialist Republics, United Arab Republic,
Yemen, Yugoslavia, Afghanistan, Albania, Bulgaria,
Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Ceylon,
Cuba, Czechoslovakia, Ghana, Guinea, Hungary, India.

Abstaining : Jordan, Mali, Nigeria, Somalia, .Sweden,
Upper Volta, Bolivia, Cambodia, Cer}tr.al African Re-
public, Congo (Brazzaville), Dominican Republic,
Ecuador, Ethiopia, Finland.

The paragraph was adopted by 56 votes to 28, with
14 abstentions.

Operative paragraph 2 was adopted without 0b-
jection.

A vote was taken by roll-call on the draft resolution
as a whole.

Chad, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman,
was called upon to wvote first.

In favour: Chad, Chile, China, Colombia, Congo
(Brazzaville), Congo (Leopoldville), Costa Rica,
Cyprus, Dahomey Denmark, El Salvador, Federation
of Malaya, France, Gabon, Greece, Guatemala, Hon-
duras, Iceland, Iran, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Ivory Coast,
Japan, Laos, Liberia, Luxembourg, Madagascar, Neth-
erlands, New Zealand, Nicaragua, Niger, Nigeria, Nor-
way, Pakistan, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines,
Portugal, Senegal, Somalia, Spain, Thailand, Togo,
Tunisia, Turkey, Union of South Africa, United King-
dom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United
States of America, Uruguay, Venezuela, Argentina,
Australia, Austria, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil, Cameroun,
Canada, Central African Republic.

Against : Cuba, Czechoslovakia, Ghana, Guinea, Hun-
gary, India, Indonesia, Iraq, Lebanon, Libya, Mexico,
Morocco, Nepal, Poland, Romania, Saudi Arabia,
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet
Socialist Republics, United Arab Republic, Yemen,
Yugoslavia, Afghanistan, Albania, Bulearia, Burma,
Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republie, Ceylon.

Abstaining : Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Ethiopia,
Finland, Jordan, Mali, Sudan, Sweden, Upper Volta,
Cambodia.



1161st meeting—21 April 1961 109

The draft resolution was adopted by 61 votes to 27,
with 10 abstentions.

13. Mr. ZORIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
said that, since his delegation intended to vote for the
Mexican draft resolution (A/C.1/L.275), it would not
press for a vote on the USSR draft resolution (A/
C.1/L.277).

14, The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the Mexican
draft resolution (A/C.1/L.275). The representative of
the Union of South Africa had requested a separate
vote on the fourth preambular paragraph, and the rep-
resentative of Cyprus had requested a separate vote on
each operative paragraph.

The first three preambular paragraphs were adopted
without objection.

A vote was taken by roll-call on the fourth pre-
ambular paragraph.

Canada, having been drawm by lot by the Chairman
was called upon to vote first.

In favour: Canada, Central African Republic, Ceylon,
Chad, Chile, Congo (Brazzaville), Congo (Leopold-
ville), Costa Rica, Cuba, Cyprus, Czechoslovakia, Da-
homey, Ecuador, El Salvador, Ethiopia, Federation of
Malaya, Finland, France, Gabon, Ghana, Greece, Guate-
mala, Guinea, Honduras, Hungary, Iceland, India, Indo-
nesia, Iran, Iraq, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Ivory Coast,
Laos, Lebanon, Libya, Madagascar, Mali, Mexico,
Morocco, Nepal, Netherlands, New Zealand, Nicaragua,
Niger, Nigeria, Norway, Pakistan, Panama, Paraguay,
Peru, Philippines, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Saudi
Arabia, Senegal, Spain, Sudan, Sweden, Thailand,
Togo, Tunisia, Turkey, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Re-
public, Union of South Africa, Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics, United Arab Republic, Upper Volta, Uru-
guay, Venezuela, Yemen, Yugoslavia, Afghanistan, Al-
bania, Argentina, Austria, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil,
Bulgaria, Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Repub-
lic, Cambodia, Cameroun.

Against: None.

Abstaining : China, Colombia, Denmark, Dominican
Republic, Japan, Jordan, Liberia, Somalia, United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United
States of America, Australia.

The paragraph was adopted by 86 votes to none, with
11 abstentions.

The fifth preambular paragraph was adopted without
objection.

A vote was taken by roll-call on operative para-
graph 1.

Sudan, having been drawwn by lot by the Chairman,
was called upon to vote first.

In favour: Sudan, Togo, Tunisia, Ukrainian Soviet
Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics,
United Arab Republic, Upper Volta, Yemen, Yugo-
slavia, Afghanistan, Albania, Bolivia, Brazil, Bulgaria,
Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Cam-
bodia, Ceylon, Chad, Chile, Congo (Brazzaville),
Congo (Leopcldville), Costa Rica, Cuba, Cyprus,
Czechoslovakia, Ecuador, Ethiopia, Ghana, Guinea,
Hungary, India, Indonesia, Iraq, Ireland, Lebanon,
Libya, Mali, Mexico, Morocco, Nepal, Nigeria, Poland,
Portugal, Romania, Saudi Arabia, Somalia.

Against: Thailand, United States of America, Uru-
guay, Argentina, Australia, Colombia, Italy.

Abstaining : Sweden, Turkey, Union of South Africa,
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland,

Venezuela, Austria, Belgium, Cameroun, Canada, Cen-
tral African Republic, China, Dahomey, Denmark,
Dominican Republic, El Salvador, Federation of Ma-
laya, Finland, France, Gabon, Greece, Guatemala, Hon-
duras, Iceland, Iran, Israel, Ivory Coast, Japan, Jordan,
Laos, Liberia, Luxembourg, Madagascar, Netherlands,
New Zealand, Nicaragua, Niger, Norway, Pakistan,
Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Senegal, Spain.

The paragraph was adopted by 47 wvotes to 7, with
44 abstentions.

A wvote was taken by roll-call on operative para-
graph 2.

The United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman,
was called wpon to vote first.

In favour: Upper Volta, Yemen, Yugoslavia, Afghan-
istan, Albania, Bolivia, Brazil, Bulgaria, Burma, Byelo-
russian Soviet Socialist Republic, Cambodia, Ceylon,
Chad, Chile, Congo (Brazzaville), Congo (Leopold-
ville), Costa Rica, Cuba, Czechoslovakia, Ecuador,
Ethiopia, Ghana, Guinea, Hungary, India, Indonesia,
Iraq, Ireland, Lebanon, Libya, Mali, Mexico, Morocco,
Nepal, Nigeria, Poland, Romania, Saudi Arabia, So-
malia, Sudan, Togo, Tunisia, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist
Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United
Arab Republic,

Against: None.

Abstaining : United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland, United States of America, Uruguay,
Venezuela, Argentina, Australia, Austria, Belgium,
Cameroun, Canada, Central African Republic, China,
Colombia, Cyprus, Dahomey, Denmark, Dominican Re-
public, El Salvador, Federation of Malaya, Finland,
France, Gabon, Greece, Guatemala, Honduras, Iceland,
Iran, Israel, Ttaly, Ivory Coast, Japan, Jordan, Laos,
Liberia, Luxembourg, Madagascar, Netherlands, New
Zealand, Nicaragua, Niger, Norway, Pakistan, Panama,
Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Portugal, Senegal, Spain,
Sweden, Thailand, Turkey, Union of South Africa.

The paragraph was adopted by 45 votes to none, with
53 abstentions.

Operative paragraph 3 was adopted without ob-
Jection.

A vote was taken by roll-call on the draft resolution
as a whole.

Sudan, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman,
was called upon to vote first.

In favour: Sudan, Togo, Tunisia, Ukrainian Soviet
Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics,
United Arab Republic, Upper Volta, Yemen, Yugo-
slavia, Afghanistan, Albania, Bolivia, Brazil, Bulgaria,
Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Cam-
bodia, Ceylon, Chad, Chile, Cuba, Czechoslovakia, Ecua-
dor, FEthiopia, Ghana, Guinea, Hungary. India, Indo-
nesia, Iraq, Ireland, Lebanon, Libya, Mali, Mexico,
Morocco, Nepal, Nigeria, Poland, Romania, Saudi
Arabia, Somalia.

Against: Thailand, Turkey, United Kingdom of
Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of
America, Uruguay, Venezuela, Argentina, Australia,
Belgium, Canada, China, Colombia, Costa Rica, El
Salvador, France, Greece, Guatemala, Honduras, Israel,
Ttaly, Ivory Coast, Japan, Luxembourg, Netherlands,
New Zealand, Nicaragua, Pakistan, Panama, Paraguay,
Peru, Philippines.



110

General Assembly—Fiftcenth Session—TFirst Committee

Abstaining : Sweden, Union of South Africa, Austria,
Cameroun, Central African Republic, Congo (Brazza-
ville), Congo (Leopoldville), Cyprus, Dahomey, Den-
mark, Dominican Republic, Federation of Malaya, Fin-
land, Gabon, Iceland, Iran, Jordan, Laos, Liberia,
Madagascar, Niger, Norway, Portugal, Senegal, Spain.

The draft resolution was adopted by 42 votes to 31,
with 25 abstentions.

15. Mr. BRUCAN (Romania) said that in view of
the vote which had just been taken his delegation would

not press for a vote on its own draft resolution (A/
C.1/1..274).

16. Sir Patrick DEAN (United Kingdom) said that
although much in the Mexican draft resolution was
unexceptionable in itself, it had to be considered in the
context in which it was tabled. So viewed, it might
appear to assume the truth of a significant part of the
allegations made by some members of the Committee
and to prejudge the situation in Cuba in a way which
was not justified on the basis of the debate. Further-
more, the draft resolution did not seem to take into
account the special interest which the search for a
solution to the problems in question presented to the
Organization of American States.

17. For those reasons, and since it had already voted
for the draft resolution submitted by seven Latin Amer-
ican countries, the United Kingdom delegation had
thought that the right course would be to abstain on
certain paragraphs of the Mexican draft resolution and
to vote against it as a whole as being supererogatory
and in some respects inappropriate.

18. Mr. ORTIZ MARTIN (Costa Rica) explained
that his delegation, while it had supported the various
paragraphs of the Mexican draft resolution, which
proclaimed principles laid down in the charter of the
Organization of American States, had not been able
to vote for the draft resolution as a whole because it
did not specifically mention that organization.

19. U THANT (Burma) said he had voted in favour
of the Mexican draft resolution because he was con-
vinced that only that resolution could provide a solution
for the distressing situation in Cuba, which, in the light
of certain recent public utterances, could give rise to
still more serious developments in that part of the
world. In the interests of world peace and in order to
strengthen the hand of the United Nations his delega-
tion had also voted in favour of the amendments sub-
mitted by the delegation of the Sudan to the seven-
Power draft resolution. On the other hand, it had voted
against the seven-Power draft resolution, which it felt
could not produce a just and peaceful solution for the
Cuban problem.

20. Mr. ROSSIDES (Cyprus) explained that his
delegation had voted for the seven-Power draft resolu-
tion because it offered the only means of solving the
problem, which was by mediation, conciliation and
understanding between the two sections of the Cuban
population. It was imperative to go to the very root of
the present state of affairs and to try to remedy it in
the spirit of the Charter of the United Nations, which
meant having due regard for the independence, the
sovereignty and the territorial integrity of Cuba and for
the exercise of human rights by the people of Cuba. The
objectivity and the impartiality of the OAS would no
doubt make it possible to find the necessary solution.

21. His delegation had abstained on the Mexican draft
resolution because, unlike the seven-Power draft resolu-

tion, it did not propose all the necessary means for
finding a solution.

22, Mr. ORTONA (Italy) said that he had voted
against operative paragraph 1 of the Mexican draft
resolution and against the draft resolution as a whole
for the reasons which he had explained at the 1158th
meeting. If his delegation had voted in favour of para-
graph 1 it would have been implicitly supporting
allegations which it could not admit to be true. More-
over, the seven-Power draft resolution, for which his
delegation had voted, expressed the views of the major-
ity of Latin American countries and made reference to
the OAS, which was an extremely important point.

23, Mr. NESBITT (Canada) said it was most regret-
table that a single Latin American draft resolution had
not been submitted to the Committee. He had not been
able to vote in favour of the Mexican draft resolution,
which did not take into consideration the fact that the
question was of particular concern to the OAS.

24. Mr. IFEAGWU (Nigeria) said that he had voted
in favour of the Mexican draft resolution because its
provisions were already contained in the charter of the
Organization of American States. He had also voted in
favour of the seven-Power draft resolution because it
was important that Cuba and the United States, as
neighhours, should be able to reach a peaceful solution
of their dispute through the assistance of other countries
in the same hemisphere. The two resolutions were com-
plementary rather than mutually exclusive.

Organization of the Committee’s work

25. The CHAIRMAN said that since the USSR had
stated that it would not press for a discussion of item 80
of the General Assembly’s agenda (Complaint of the
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics about a menace
to world peace created hy aggressive actions of the
United States of America against the Union of Soviet
Socialist Republics), the Committee now had before
it only item 88 (Africa: a United Nations programme
for independence and development), item 21 (The
Korean question: report of the United Nations Com-
mission for the Unification and Rehabilitation of Korea)
and item 22 (Report of the Committee on the Peaceful
Uses of Outer Space). In view of the date fixed for the
closing of the fifteenth session, however, the Committee
had no time to discuss those items. He therefore pro-
posed that consideration of those three items of the
agenda should be deferred to the sixteenth session.

26. Mr. QUAISON-SACKEY (Ghana) pointed out
that the item relating to Africa was considered very
important by all African delegations, and also by the
United States delegation, which had asked for its inclu-
sion in the agenda of the fifteenth session. In a spirit
of compromise, however, he was prepared to accept the
Chairman’s suggestion.

27. Mr. SHANAHAN (New Zealand) welcomed the
attitude of the delegation of Ghana. He pointed out that
draft resolution B submitted by the African States in
document A/C.1/1.271/Rev.1 referred to several reso-
lutions adopted by the General Assembly and by the
Economic Commission for Africa; and those resolutions
would in the ordinary course be before the Economic
and Social Council during its summer session. It was
therefore probable that the problem would come up in
a different form at the next General Assembly session,
which should be free to study the matter of form at the
appropriate time.



1161st meeting—21 April 1961 111

28. Mr. STEVENSON (United States of America)
recalled that the item relating to Africa had been in-
cluded in the agenda at his delegation’s request. That
showed the importance which the United States attached
to it. Since, however, the Assembly did not have time
to give the item adequate consideration, the United
States delegation regretfully associated itself with the
Ghanaian representative’s suggestion. It also considered
it unfortunate that the discussion of the Korean item
had had to be deferred before it had been possible to
hear the representative of the United Nations Commis-
sion for the Unification and Rehabilitation of Korea
(UNCURK) and the Minister for Foreign Affairs of
the Republic of Korea, both of whom had travelled to
New York at the invitation of the General Assembly.
Lastly, the United States delegation was disappointed
that the Committee had not been able to discuss the
question of the peaceful uses of outer space. In the
circumstances, however, it was preferable to defer all
those items to the next session.

29. Mr. SLIM (Tunisia) regretted that the Com-
mittee had not had time to consider so important a
question as that of the proposed United Nations pro-
gramme for independence and development in Africa.
Having regard to the situation, his delegation was pre-
pared to agree to the deferment of the item, which
should, however, be among the first items taken up at
the sixteenth session, so that the General Assembly had
enough time to deal with it in an unhurried atmosphere.

30. Mr. WACHUKU (Nigeria) regretted that the
Committee was so reluctant to handle a matter which
concerned Africa fundamentally. The African countries
had been asked to show initiative, and they had done
so by submitting a draft resolution. Yet they had not
been given the co-operation they had expected. e
hoped that the Committee would not postpone con-
sideration of the item relating to Africa indefinitely.
31. The Committee had postponed consideration of
the draft resolutions submitted by the African States
(A/C.1/L.271/Rev.1), because those States had not
been willing to drop operative paragraph 3 of draft
resolution A, which was the key to the whole matter.
Perhaps those concerned would have made up their
minds on the matter by the next session. Draft resolu-
tion B asked that the whole matter should be referred
to various committees and specialized agencies, which
would report to the General Assembly at its sixteenth
session. If it was decided to defer the item, the text
would have to be redrafted, and the reports called for
would not be submitted to the Assembly until its
seventeenth or eighteenth session. That meant the in-
definite deferment of decisions on matters of vital im-
portance to Africa. The Nigerian delegation was
particularly disappointed, because it was a matter of
making studies and submitting a report, not of taking
a final decision.

32. Mr. MATSUDAIRA (Japan) said he was great-
ly disappointed that circumstances had prevented a dis-
cussion of the substance of the Korean question, which
was most important to the political stability of the Far
East., The Committee should at least have heard the
report of the representative of UNCURK and the state-
ment of the Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Re-
public of Korea.

33. Mr. CAMARA Maurice (Guinea) opposed defer-
ment of the item relating to Africa. The problem was
urgent, and a large number of African representatives
had associated themselves with the sponsors of the two
draft resolutions in document A/C.1/L.271/Rev.1. He

therefore proposed that all representatives who had
intended to speak in the debate should let the Com-
mittee secretariat have the text of their statements with
a view to their publication as an official document, and
that the draft resolutions should be adopted without
debate by the First Committee and referred immediately
to the plenary Assembly.

34, Mr. QUINTERO (Philippines) regretted that the
Committee had not been able to consider the substance
of the Korean question and had not heard the repre-
sentative of UNCURK or the Minister for Foreign
Affairs of the Republic of Korea. However, since the
session was nearly over, the Philippine delegation would
not oppose deferment of the item to the next session.

35. Mr. GEBRE-EGZY (Ethiopia) said he was dis-
appointed that the Committee apparently wished to
defer consideration of the item relating to Africa. He
had understood that a compromise was being worked
out so that the draft resolutions submitted by the Afri-
can countries (A/C.1/1.271/Rev.1} could be adopted
without discussion, which would have been a simple
matter. However, the Ethiopian delegation would not
insist on the Committee’s discussing the draft resolu-
tions at once, and it appealed to the representative of
Guinea not to press his proposal. Between now and the
next session, the African countries would have time
to review the problem as a whole.

36. Mr. WACHUKU (Nigeria) thought that the
United Nations programme for Africa should be the
Committee’s first order of business at the next session.
A number of important aspects of disarmament had
been deferred to the sixteenth session, and some rep-
resentatives would naturally want to have disarmament
discussed first. If they had their way, the discussion
might be prolonged because of the importance of the
disarmament problem, and the African programme
would perhaps not be considered until the end of the
session.

37. Mr. LIU (China) expressed his disappointment
that the Korean question had not received the con-
sideration it deserved at the present session, particularly
because important events had taken place in Korea
since the General Assembly had last discussed the
matter. He wished to take the opportunity of express-
ing his delegation’s confidence in the new Government
of the Republic of Korea.

38. Mr. NESBITT (Canada) said it was unfortunate
that the Committee had not had time to give the very
important African and Korean questions the full atten-
tion required, and in particular to hear the representa-
tive of UNCURK and the Minister for Foreign Affairs
of the Republic of Korea, both of whom had come a
long way to no purpose.

39. Replying to a question put by the CHAIRMAN,
Mr. CAMARA Maurice (Guinea) confirmed that he
was presenting a formal proposal: first, that those rep-
resentatives who wished to take part in the African
debate should submit the texts of their statements to
the Committee secretariat for publication as an official
document, and secondly, that the draft resolutions sub-
mitted by the African countries should be adopted with-
out discussion and referred immediately to the plenary
Assembly.

40. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) appealed to the
representative of Guinea to reconsider his proposal. He
thought it would be strange to adopt draft resolutions
on so important a matter, without discussion, at the end
of the session. .



112 General Assembly—Fifteenth Session—First Committee

41, Mr. CAMARA Maurice (Guinea) said he agreed
to withdraw his proposal and desired to associate him-
self with the views expressed by the representative of
Nigeria.

42. Mr. GEBRE-EGZY (Ethiopia) said he hoped
that the Committee would bear in mind the statements
made on the item relating to Africa and would appre-
ciate the African countries’ desire to have that matter
duly discussed at the next session.

43. The CHAIRMAN felt that the Committee could
not establish an order of priority at the present stage
for the various items that would be on the agenda of
the sixteenth session.

Completion of the Committee’s work

44, The CHAIRMAN thanked all representatives for
their valuable co-operation and said he wished to convey

Mr. Kurka’s regret at his inability to take the Chair
at that meeting and his appreciation of the co-operation
he had received.

45. Mr. DELGADO (Philippines) thanked the Chair-
man and the other officers of the Committee for the
ability and goodwill they had displayed.

46. Mr. LEWANDOWSKI (Poland), speaking on
behalf of the socialist countries, expressed his gratitude
to Mr. Kurka, who had discharged his duties with

impartiality and competence, as well as to the other
officers of the Committee.

47. Mr. CHORFTI (Morocco), speaking on behalf of
the delegations of the Arab countries, associated himself
with the preceding speakers in expressing thanks to the
Chairman and the other officers of the Committee.

The meeting rose at 5.40 p.m.

Printed in U.S.A.

M—9504—July 1961—2,125



DISTRIBUTORS FOR UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS

ARGENTINA

Editorial Sudamericang, S.A., Alsina 500,
Buenos Aires.

AUSTRALIA

Melbourne University Press, 369 lons.
dale Street, Melbourne C, 1.

AUSTRIA

Gerold & Co., Graben 31, Wien, 1.

B. Wiillerstorff, Markus Sittikusstrasse 10,
Salzburg.

BELGIUM

Agence et Messageries de la Presse, 5.A,,
14-22, rue du Persil, Bruxelles.

BOLIVIA

Libreria Selecciones, Casilla 972, La Paz.
BRAZIL

Livraria Agir, Rua Mexico 98-B, Caixa
Postal 3291, Rio de Janeiro.

BURMA

Curator, Govt. Book Depot, Rangaon.
CAMBODIA

Entreprise khmére de librairie, Impri.
merie & Papeterie Sarl, Phnom-Penh,
CANADA

The Queen’s Printer, Ottawa, Ontario.
CEYLON

Lake House Bookshop, Assoc. Newspapers
of Ceylon, P.O. Box 244, Colombe.
CHILE
Editorial
Santiago.
Libreria lvens, Casilla 205, Santiago.
CHINA

The World Book Co., Ltd., 99 Chung
King Road, 1st Section, Taipeh, Taiwan.
The Commercial Press, Ltd., 211 Honan
Rd., Shanghai.

COLOMBIA

Librerfa Buchholz, Av, Jiménez de Que-
sada 8-40, Bogoté.

COSTA RICA

Imprenta y librerla Trejos, Apartado
1313, San José.

CUBA

La Casa Belga, O'Reilly 455, La Habana.
CZECHOSLOVAKIA

Ceskoslovensky Spisovatel, Narodnl Tiida
9, Praha 1.

DENMARK

del Pacifico, Ahumada 57,

Ejnar Munksgaard, Ltd., Ngrregade §, -

Kgbenhavn, K.

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

Libreria Dominicana, Mercedes 49, Ciu-
dad Trujillo.

ECUADOR

Libreria Cientifica, Casilla 362, Guaya-
quil.

EL SALVADOR

Manuel Navas y Cla., 1a. Avenida sur
37, San Salvador.

ETHIOPIA

International Press Agency, P.O. Box
120, Addis Ababa.

FINLAND

Akateeminen Kirjakauppa, 2 Keskuskatu,
Helsinki.

FRANCE

Editions A. Pédone, 13, rue Soufflot,
Paris (Ve).
© GERMANY

R. Eisenschmidt, Schwanthaler Str. 59,
Frankfurt/Main.

Elwert und Meurer, Hauptstrasse 101,
Berlin-Schéneberg.

Alexander Horn, Spiegelgasse 9, Wies-
baden.

W. E. Saarbach, Gertrudenstrasse 30,
Kaln (1).

GHANA

University Bookshop, University College
of Ghana, Legon, Acerg,

GREECE

Kauffmann Bookshop, 28 Sta;!ion Street,
Athénes. .

GUATEMALA

Sociedad Econdmico-Financiera, &a Av.
14-33, Guatemala City,

HAITI

Librairie “A la Caravelle”, Port-au-Prince.
HONDURAS

Libreria Panamericana, Tegucigalpa.
HONG KONG

The Swindon Book Co., 25 Nathan Road,
Kowloon.

{CELAND

Bokaverzlun Sigfusar Eymundssonar H.
F., Austurstraeti 18, Reykjavik.

INDIA

Orient Longmans, Calcutta, Bombay, Ma-
dras, New Delhi and Hyderabad.
Oxford Book & Stationery Co. New
Delhi and Calcutta.

P. Varadachary & Co., Madras.
INDONESIA

Pembangunan, Ltd., Gunung Sahari 84,
Djakarta.

IRAN

Guity, 482 Ferdowsi Avenve, Teheran.
IRAQ

Mackenzie’s Bookshop, Baghdad.
IRELAND

Stationery Office, Dublin.

ISRAEL

Blumstein’s Bookstores, 35 Allenby Rd.
and 48 Nachlat Benjamin St., Tel Aviv.
ITALY

Libreria Commissionaria Sanseni, Via
Gino Capponi 26, Firenze, and Via D. A,
Azuni 15/A, Roma.

JAPAN

Maruzen Company, Ltd., 6 Tori-Nichome,
Nihonbashi, Tokyo.

JORDAN

Joseph |. Bahous & Co., Dar-ul-Kutub,
Box 66, Amman.

KOREA

Eul-Yoo Publishing Co., Ltd., 5, 2KA,
Chongno, Seoul.

LEBANON

Khayat's College Book Cooperative,
92-94, rue Bliss, Beirut.

LUXEMBOURG

Librairie J. Trausch-Schummer, place du
Théatre, Luxembourg.

MEXICO

Editorial Hermes, S.A., Ignacio Mariscal
41, México, D.F,

MOROCCO

Centre de diffusion documentaire du
B.E.P.l., 8, rue Michaux-Bellaire, Rabat.
NETHERLANDS

N.V. Martinus Nijhoff, Lange Voorhout
9, ‘s-Gravenhage.

NEW ZEALAND

United Nations Association of New Zea-
land, C.P.O. 1011, Wellington.
NORWAY

Johan Grundt Tanum Forlag, Kr. Au-
gustsgt 7A, Oslo.

PAKISTAN
The Pakistan Co-operative Book Society,
Dacca, East Pakistan.
Publishers United, Ltd., Lahore.
Thomas & Thomas, Karachi.
PANAMA
José Menéndez, Agencia Internacional
de Publicaciones, Apartado 2052, Av.
8A, sur 21-58, Panama.
PARAGUAY
Agencia de Librerias de Salvador Nizza,
Calle Pte. Franco No. 39-43, Asuncidn.
PERU
Libreria Internacional del Perd, S.A,,
Casilla 1417, Lima.
PHILIPPINES .
Alemar’s Book Store, 769 Rizal Avenve,
Manila.
PORTUGAL
Livraria Rodrigues y Cia, 186 Rua Aureaq,
Lisboa.
SINGAPORE
The City Book Store, Lid., Collyer Quay.
SPAIN
Libreria Bosch, 11 Ronda Universidad,
Barcelona.
Libreria Mundi-Prensa, Castello 37, Ma-
drid.
SWEDEN
C. E. Fritze’s Kungl. Hovbokhandel A-B,
Fredsgatan 2, Stockholm.
SWITZERLAND
Librairie Payot, S.A., Lausanne, Genéve,
Hans Raunhardt, Kirchgasse 17, Zijrich 1.
THAILAND
Pramuan Mit, ltd., 55 Chokrawat Road,
Wat Tuk, Bangkok.
TURKEY
Librairie Hachette, 469 Istiklal Caddesi,
Beyoglu, Istanbul.
UNION OF SOUTH AFRICA
Van Schaik’s Bookstore (Pty) Ltd., Church
Street, Box 724, Pretoria.
UNION OF SOVIET SOCIALIST
REPUBLICS
Mezhdunarodnaya Knyiga, Smolenskaya
Ploshchad, Moskva.
UNITED ARAB REPUBLIC
Librairie “La Renaissance d’Egypte”, ¢
Sh. Adly Pasha, Cairo.
UNITED KINGDOM
H.M. Stationery Office, P.O. Box 569,
London, S.E. 1 (and HMSO branches in
Belfast, Birmingham, Bristol, Cardiff,
Edinburgh, Manchester).
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Sales Section, Publishing Service, United
Nations, New York.
URUGUAY
Representacién de Editoriales, Prof. H.
D’Elia, Plaza Cagancha 1342, 1° piso,
Montevideo.
VENEZUELA
Libreria del Este, Av, Miranda, No. 52,
Edf. Galipén, Caracas.
VIET-NAM
Librairie-Papeterie Xuén Thu, 185, rve
Tu-do, B.P. 283, Saigon.
YUGOSLAVIA
Cankarjeva Zalotba, Ljubljana, Slovenia.
DrZavno Preduzele, Jugoslovenska Kniji-
gq, Terazije 27/11, Beograd.
Prosvieta, 5, Trg Bratstva i Jedinstva,
Zagreb.

- [61E1]

Orders and inquiries from countries not listed above may be sent to: Sales Section, Publishing Service, United Nations, New
York, U.S.A.; or Sales Section, United Nations, Palais des Nations, Geneva, Switzerland.

Printed in U.S.A.

Price: $U.S, 1.50; 10/6 stg.; Sw. fr. 6.50
(or equivalent in other currencies)

M-—9504—October 1961550





